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EARNINGS PER SHARE

(diluted)

24%
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RETURN ON EQUITY

The financial information above and on the facing page represents the continuing operations of the Company, excluding
certain charges in Fiscal 2002 described in note L of the Company’s consolidated financial statements contained herein.
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Retail units sold. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

24,281
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C O M PANY P R O F I LE
America’s Car-Mart operates 73 automotive dealerships
in seven states and is the largest publicly held automotive
retailer in the United States focused exclusively on the
“Buy Here, Pay Here” segment of the used car market.
The Company operates its dealerships primarily in
small cities throughout the South-Central United States
selling quality used vehicles and providing financing for
substantially all of its customers.
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DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS
Fiscal 2004 was a challenging but successful year for your Company.
Revenues increased 14% to $176 million, income from continuing
operations grew 15% to $15.6 million, and diluted earnings per
share increased 13% to $1.96. We opened seven new dealerships and
experienced same store revenue growth of about 10%. Over the year, we
reduced the percentage of accounts over 30 days past due to 3.0% at April
30, 2004 from 3.9% a year earlier. We also made considerable progress
at strengthening our management infrastructure, which will prove
invaluable as we continue to expand our business. Also, for the third year

T.J. (“Skip”) Falgout, III
Chairman & CEO

in a row, we are pleased to report that all of our stores were profitable.
The Company’s stock performed well during the fiscal year, increasing from
$15.00 to $25.99 at April 30, or 73%. Over the same time period, the S&P
500 Index increased 21%. Excluding a gain from discontinued operations,
the Company generated a 24% return on equity for the fiscal year, while
book value per share increased 19% over the same period.
While we had a number of accomplishments in Fiscal 2004, the year
was not without its difficulties. Credit losses were higher than normal
and revenue growth was on the low end of our historical range. Slower

William H. (“Hank”) Henderson
President

revenue growth and higher credit losses were partially attributable to
a decision we made early in the year to sell more lower-priced vehicles.
Lower-priced vehicles allow for higher gross margin percentages than

“We continue to firmly believe

higher-priced vehicles, and less expensive cars are arguably more

that our ability to maintain

affordable to our customers. However, the sale of lower-priced vehicles

strong growth in revenues and
earnings while simultaneously
decreasing leverage sets our

had a negative impact on revenue growth due to a decrease in the average
retail sales price, and loans on lower-priced vehicles tend to result in a
higher level of repossessions when compared to loans on higher-priced
vehicles. As a result of the higher credit losses and negative impact on
revenue growth, we decided late in Fiscal 2004 to substantially reduce

company apart from other

sales of lower-priced vehicles. We believe this decision will have a positive

auto retailers and “Buy Here,

impact on revenue growth and credit losses in the future.

Pay Here” dealers.”

In addition to purchasing slightly higher-priced vehicles, we have also
increased the number of units we are carrying at each of our stores.

$25.99

Today, our inventory is in the best shape ever. We have more cars
available for sale and a greater selection of higher quality cars. With
the increase in the number of units in inventory and the slightly higher

$13.40

average purchase prices, we have increased the amount of capital we

$15.00

provide to new stores from $250,000 to $300,000.
In an effort to reduce repossessions, we tightened up our delinquency
standards late in fiscal 2004. Previously, we had delinquency standards
for two categories of past due accounts (one and two weeks past due,

FY02
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Year End Stock Price

and three or more weeks past due). We felt that we needed to further
subdivide the three or more weeks past due category into several smaller
categories, such as 21-30 days past due, 31-60 days past due and 61 and
over days past due. By adding these additional categories, we have strictly
limited 30- and 60-day past due accounts and virtually eliminated over
90-day past due accounts. With these standards, our collection personnel
are motivated to address the more severe past due accounts earlier, which
we believe will result in more “saved” accounts and fewer repossessions.
During the year, we strengthened our infrastructure by increasing the
number of managers, buyers, collection personnel and trainers we have
at the corporate office level. On average, our Area Operations Managers

73%

are supervising fewer stores than in the past, thereby enabling them to
spend more time at the stores. Similarly, the ratio of buyers to stores has
increased. We have also added corporate level collection personnel and
35%

trainers for each region. Our Area Collection Managers are available
to assist store managers and collection personnel to keep credit losses

21%

in line. If delinquency percentages at any of our dealerships exceed
our standards, these managers will help deliver the manpower to swiftly
address and solve problems. As we continue to add stores and increase

CRMT

S&P 500 Auto Retailers

FY 2004 Relative Stock Performance

the volume at existing stores, it is imperative that we have the proper
level of corporate office support personnel and management to manage
our growth.
Since training is such an integral part of the growth and development
of our associates, we have invested in a new facility in Conway, Arkansas,
which will serve as the primary Car-Mart training center. The facility
(Continued on next page)
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(Continued from previous page)

will include a mock Car-Mart store so that we can provide realistic
scenarios to enhance the training process. We are excited about
this new facility, as it is an important part of the growth and
standardization of our training process.

FISCAL 2005 AND BEYOND
We will continue to follow our disciplined, organic growth strategy,
attracting new customers in new and existing markets and expanding
our relationships with current customers by increasing our repeat
and referral business. We will open at least eight stores in Fiscal
2005, principally in Texas, Oklahoma and Missouri. We have been
pleasantly surprised at the progress some of our newer Texas stores
have achieved and will continue to develop this market. In addition,
we will continue the expansion or relocation of a number of our
existing dealerships to accommodate increased demand that is
currently constrained by lot size. Moreover, some of our existing
dealerships are maturing to the point where they may require satellite
locations to assist in their sales and collection efforts. By adding eight
or so new stores, expanding several existing stores and maintaining
steady same store revenue growth, we expect revenues to increase
$39.8

about 16-17% in Fiscal 2005. As we have done in the past, we expect to
finance most or all of our growth internally from profits with little or
no increase in debt. We continue to firmly believe that our ability to
$26.0

$22.5

maintain strong growth in revenues and earnings while simultaneously
decreasing leverage sets our company apart from other auto retailers
and “Buy Here, Pay Here” dealers.
As a growth company, we must continually be focused on the future
- new markets, new stores and associates to operate those stores. One
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Fiscal Year End Debt (in millions)

of the biggest factors in continuing our success is the training and
retention of qualified associates and, in particular, management
personnel. Presently, we believe that we have some of the finest men
and women of any company around. Hard-working, honest, loyal and
customer-oriented are just a few of their many desirable attributes. In
Fiscal 2005 we will be focusing on improving our systems to identify,

train, develop and retain associates at all levels, with a particular
emphasis on management personnel.
24,281
22,022

SPECIAL THANKS
On a personal note, we would like to say goodbye to Nan Smith, who
retired as an officer of Car-Mart and Chairman of the Board of the

18,658

Company in May. Nan has been with Car-Mart since its inception in 1981

15,659

and is responsible more than any other person for the growth, success

13,852

and unique culture of Car-Mart. She had a passion for the business and
for our associates. Her tireless effort and commitment to excellence
have served as a shining example to all the associates who make up our
workforce today. We are tremendously appreciative of all that she has
given to this Company and its associates over the years, and we wish her
FY00
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Retail Unit Sales

all the best in her future endeavors.
We feel that the Company is in better condition than ever to accomplish
its expansion plans. With tighter delinquency standards in effect, more
oversight positions at every level and an inventory mix that offers more
favorable collection results, we believe that we are well positioned to
execute our growth strategy. We have become a more mature company

67.0
61.2

— one that is quicker to address problems, more responsive to our
customers’ needs, more focused on training future leaders and always

52.5

accountable to our investors.

44.6

We are determined to make this year another successful one for your

37.9

Company — one that is rewarding for our customers, our associates and
our shareholders. On behalf of the management, directors and our more
than 700 dedicated and loyal associates, we thank you for your continued
support of America’s Car-Mart.
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Average Dealerships in Operation

Sincerely,
T.J. (“Skip”) Falgout, III
Chairman & CEO
William H. (“Hank”) Henderson
President
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OUR FORMULA FOR SUCCESS STARTS WITH PEOPLE

Here at America’s Car-Mart, we are extremely fortunate to have such a
loyal and capable group of associates. We do our best to offer great career
opportunities so that we can recruit the best people today’s workforce has
to offer. Recently, we asked five of our valued associates to contribute a
few comments that they would like to share about their experiences at
Car-Mart. It’s people like these who exemplify our Company philosophy
of making customer satisfaction our highest priority.
Tracy Tillar,

DEALERSHIP MANAGER

When I first started at Car-Mart 10 years ago, I had
just finished college and was eager to begin my sales
and finance job. To my surprise, the first several
days of work were not spent learning the ropes, but
were utilized instead to talk about honesty, integrity,
dedication, passion and hard work. After only a few
months, I decided that my job at Car-Mart would
become a career because the teaching and principles
that govern the day to day decisions coincided with
those I have learned since childhood. My professional
experiences at Car-Mart have provided me with
challenges that keep me humble and achievements
that keep me striving to reach new plateaus of success.
I am honored to serve as general manager of the Pine
Bluff dealership, and I look forward to many years of
continued growth and success.

Doris Roberts,

AREA COLLECTIONS MANAGER

After starting as an account representative in March 2000, I have since progressed to senior account
manager and now area collections manager. The past several years have given me tremendous learning
experience, and I feel like the various challenges I’ve encountered along the way have enabled me to
develop both personally and professionally. One theme that has been consistent from the beginning,
though, is respect. Every associate throughout the company is treated with great respect, and they show
that same respect to everyone else with whom they come into contact. I feel fortunate to work with such
caring and respectful people, and it is clear to me everyday that Car-Mart cares about me not just as an
associate, but as a person.

Chuck Radtke,

BUYER

I joined Car-Mart in March of 1982, not expecting to stay for more than a month. I had no interest in selling
cars at the time. But I quickly realized that something about this job was different. And after 22 years and a
half dozen positions within the company, I still think something about this job is different. Car-Mart is not just
about selling cars…it’s much more than that. Car-Mart is a family. It’s been important to me all of my life to
treat people right, and Car-Mart has always done just that. Customer service is our number one priority. I visit
dealerships from Kentucky to Texas, and there’s nothing like walking into a new dealership and sensing the
pride of the associates as they develop their own base of new customers. The integrity, honesty and character of
our associates are just a few of the reasons why I’m proud to work at Car-Mart.

Rex Davis,

SALES ASSOCIATE

If there is one thing that has been clear from the first day I started with the company four years ago, it’s
that Car-Mart is all about taking care of its customers. We always put the customer first, no matter what.
For many of our customers, this is the first time they’ve ever been able to buy an automobile, so it’s really
gratifying to help make their dreams come true. As for me, working for Car-Mart has been one of the
most rewarding employment experiences that I’ve had. My general manager has been a great mentor,
and I get along great with the rest of our team at the dealership. I’m looking forward to many years of
success at Car-Mart.

Dee Papasan,

OFFICE MANAGER

Since I began at Car-Mart in December 2000, I’ve held several positions at the company. One thing that I
learned early on is that regardless of your job title, there are always opportunities to advance and succeed. I
remember well my first week at Car-Mart when I started as a customer service representative. A lot attendant
called in sick, so we all shared the work, which included our assistant manager coming outside in the freezing
cold to help me scrape paint off of a window. I knew then that teamwork really meant a lot at this company. My
overall experience with Car-Mart has been very good to this point, and I feel that I’ve become a much more
responsible person since I began working here. Car-Mart has taught me to always be honest and dependable,
and most importantly, that the customer always comes first!
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GOOD IDEAS JUST KEEP GROWING

With the addition of three dealerships since fiscal year end, America’s Car-Mart
now operates 73 dealerships in seven states, financing over 34,000 customers. The
Company expects to open a total of at least eight new dealerships in Fiscal 2005,
focusing principally on Texas, Oklahoma and Missouri.
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PART I

Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains numerous “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements address the Company’s future objectives, plans and goals, as well
as the Company’s intent, beliefs and current expectations regarding future operating performance, and can generally be identified by
words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “foresee,” and other similar words or
phrases. Specific events addressed by these forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:
•

opening new stores at the rate of 8% to 14% per year;

•

the continuation of same store revenue growth;

•

revenue growth of approximately 16% to 17% in fiscal 2005;

•

receivables growth approximately equal to sales growth;

•

the Company’s business and growth strategies;

•

financing growth primarily from profits; and

•

having adequate liquidity to satisfy its capital needs.

These forward-looking statements are based on the Company’s current estimates and assumptions and involve various risks and
uncertainties. As a result, you are cautioned that these forward looking statements are not guarantees of future performance, and that
actual results could differ materially from those projected in these forward looking statements. Factors that may cause actual results to
differ materially from the Company’s projections include those risks described elsewhere in this report, as well as:
•

the availability of a credit facility for the Company’s business;

•

the Company’s ability to effectively underwrite and collect its loans;

•

competition;

•

dependence on existing management;

•

changes in lending laws or regulations; and

•

general economic conditions in the markets in which the Company operates, including fluctuations in employment
levels.

The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which
speak only as of the dates on which they are made.

Item 1. Business

Business and Organization

America’s Car-Mart, Inc., a Texas corporation (the “Company”), is the largest publicly held automotive retailer in the
United States focused exclusively on the “Buy Here/Pay Here” segment of the used car market. References to the
Company typically include the Company’s consolidated subsidiaries. The Company’s operations are principally conducted
through its two operating subsidiaries, America’s Car-Mart, Inc., an Arkansas corporation, (“Car-Mart of Arkansas”) and
Colonial Auto Finance, Inc. (“Colonial”). Collectively, Car-Mart of Arkansas and Colonial are referred to herein as
“Car-Mart”. The Company primarily sells older model used vehicles and provides financing for substantially all of its
customers. Many of the Company’s customers have limited financial resources and would not qualify for conventional
financing as a result of limited credit histories or past credit problems. As of April 30, 2004, the Company operated 70
stores located primarily in small cities throughout the South-Central United States.
In October 2001, the Company made the decision to sell all of its operating subsidiaries except Car-Mart, and relocate its corporate
headquarters to Bentonville, Arkansas where Car-Mart is based. As a result of this decision, all of the Company’s other operating
subsidiaries were sold and their operating results have been included in discontinued operations. The Company sold its last remaining
discontinued operation in July 2002. Discontinued operations are described in Note P in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

2

Business Strategy
In general, it is the Company’s objective to continue to expand its Buy Here/Pay Here used car operation using the same business
model that has been developed by Car-Mart over the last 23 years. This business strategy focuses on:
●

Collecting Customer Accounts. Collecting customer accounts is perhaps the single most important aspect of operating a Buy
Here/Pay Here used car business and is a focal point for store level and corporate office personnel on a daily basis.
Periodically, the Company measures and monitors the collection results of its stores using internally developed delinquency
and repossession standards. Substantially all associate incentive compensation is tied directly or indirectly to collection
results. Over the last nine years, Car-Mart’s annual credit losses as a percentage of sales have been relatively stable ranging
from a low of 17.0% to a high of 21.3%. The Company believes that it can continue to be successful provided it maintains its
credit losses within or below its historical credit loss range.

●

Maintaining a Decentralized Operation. The Company’s dealerships will continue to operate on a decentralized basis. Each
store is responsible for buying (with the assistance of a corporate office buyer) and selling its own vehicles, making credit
decisions and collecting the loans it originates in accordance with established policies and procedures. Most customers make
their payments in person at one of the Company’s dealerships. This decentralized structure is complemented by the oversight
and involvement of corporate office management and the maintenance of centralized financial controls, including an internal
compliance staff.

●

Expanding Through Controlled Organic Growth. The Company will continue to expand its operations by increasing
revenues at existing dealerships and opening new dealerships. The Company expects to open new stores at the rate of 8% to
14% per annum for the foreseeable future. The Company currently has no plans to acquire existing dealerships of other Buy
Here/Pay Here operators.

●

Selling Basic Transportation. The Company will continue to focus on selling basic and affordable transportation to its
customers. In general, the Company generally does not sell luxury cars or sports cars. Most vehicles are sold at prices
between $5,000 and $8,500, with an average retail sales price of approximately $6,500 in fiscal 2004. By selling vehicles in
this price range the Company is able to keep the terms of its installment sales contracts short (average of 25 months), while
requiring relatively low payments.

●

Operating in Smaller Communities. The majority of the Company’s dealerships are located in cities and towns with a
population of 50,000 or less. The Company believes that by operating in smaller communities it experiences better collection
results as its customers are more stable in their employment and place of residence, and are easier to locate in the event their
loans become delinquent. Further, the Company believes that operating costs, such as salaries, rent and advertising, are lower
in smaller communities than in major metropolitan areas.

●

Promoting from Within. It has been the Company’s practice to attempt to hire honest and hardworking individuals to fill
entry level positions, nurture and develop these associates, and attempt to fill the vast majority of its managerial positions from
within the Company. By promoting from within, the Company believes it is better able to train its associates in the Car-Mart
way of doing business, maintain the Company’s unique culture and develop the loyalty of its associates.

●

Cultivating Customer Relationships. The Company believes that developing and maintaining a relationship with its
customers is critical to the success of the Company. As much as 40% of sales at mature stores are made to repeat customers,
and an additional 10% to 15% of sales result from customer referrals. By developing a personal relationship with its customers
the Company believes it is in a better position to assist a customer, and the customer is more likely to cooperate with the
Company, should the customer experience financial difficulty during the term of his or her installment loan with the Company.
The Company is in a position to cultivate these relationships as the majority of its customers make their payments in person at
one of the Company’s dealerships on a weekly or bi-weekly basis.

Business Strengths
The Company believes it possesses a number of strengths, or advantages, that distinguish it from most of its competitors. These
business strengths include:
●

Experienced and Incentivized Management. The Company’s executive officers have an average tenure of 15 years. Many
of Car-Mart’s store managers have been with the Company for more than ten years. Each store manager is compensated, at
least in part (some entirely), based upon the net income of his or her store. A significant portion of the compensation of CarMart senior management is incentive based.

●

Proven Business Practices. The Company’s operations are highly structured. While stores are operated on a decentralized
basis, the Company has established policies, procedures and business practices for virtually every aspect of a store’s operation.
Detailed operating manuals are available to assist the store manager and office and collections personnel in performing their
daily tasks. As a result, each store is operated in a uniform manner. Further, corporate office personnel monitor the stores’
operations through weekly visits and a number of daily, weekly and monthly communications and reports. For the last three
fiscal years, each of the Company’s stores operated profitably.
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●

Low Cost Operator. The Company has structured its store and corporate office operations to minimize operating costs. The
number of associates employed at the store level is dictated by the number of active customer accounts each store services.
Associate compensation is standardized for each store position. Other operating costs are closely monitored and scrutinized.
Technology is utilized to maximize efficiency. The Company believes its operating costs as a percentage of revenue, or per
unit sold, is among the lowest in the industry.

●

Well Capitalized / Limited External Capital Required for Growth. As of April 30, 2004, the Company’s debt to equity
ratio was 0.27 to 1.0, which the Company believes is lower than the majority of its competitors. Further, the Company
believes it can fund the majority of its planned growth from net income generated from operations. Of the external capital that
may be needed to fund growth, the Company plans to draw on its existing revolving credit facility, or a renewal or replacement
of that facility.

●

Significant Expansion Opportunities. The Company generally targets smaller communities to locate its dealerships (i.e.,
populations from 20,000 to 50,000), but has had success in larger cities such as Tulsa, Oklahoma and Little Rock, Arkansas.
The Company believes there are numerous suitable communities within the seven states in which the Company currently
operates to satisfy anticipated store growth for the next several years. During fiscal 2005, the Company plans to add dealership
locations principally in Texas, Oklahoma and Missouri.

Operations
●

Store Organization. Stores are operated on a decentralized basis. Each store is responsible for the buying (with the
assistance of a corporate office buyer) and selling of vehicles, making credit decisions, and servicing and collecting the
installment loans it originates. Stores also maintain their own records and make daily deposits. Store-level financial
statements are prepared by the corporate office on a monthly basis. Depending on the number of active customer accounts, a
store may have as few as two or as many as 20 associates employed at that location. Associate positions at a large store may
include a store manager, assistant store manager, manager trainee, office manager, assistant office manager, service manager,
buyer, collections personnel, salesmen and lot attendants. Stores are open Monday through Saturday from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00
p.m. The Company has both regular and satellite stores. Satellite stores are similar to regular stores, except that they tend to
be smaller, sell fewer vehicles and their financial performance is not captured in a stand alone financial statement, but rather is
included in the financial results of the sponsoring regular store.

●

Store Location and Facilities. Below is a summary of stores opened during the fiscal years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and
2002:

Stores at beginning of year
New stores opened
Stores closed

2004
64
7
(1)

Stores at end of year

70

Years Ended April 30,
2003
55
9

2002
47
8

64

55

Below is a summary of store locations by state as of April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

Arkansas
Oklahoma
Texas
Kentucky
Missouri
Kansas
Indiana

2004
32
13
10
7
6
1
1

As of April 30,
2003
33
13
4
7
5
1
1

2002
30
9
2
7
5
1
1

Total

70

64

55

Stores by State

Stores are typically located in smaller communities. As of April 30, 2004, approximately 75% of the Company’s stores
were located in cities with populations of less than 50,000. Stores are located on leased or owned property between one and
three acres in size. When opening a new store the Company will typically use an existing structure on the property to conduct
business, or purchase a facility while business at the new location develops. These facilities typically range in size from 3,000
to 5,000 square feet.
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●

Purchasing. The Company purchases vehicles primarily through wholesalers and new car dealers. Occasionally the
Company will purchase vehicles from auctions. The majority of vehicle purchasing is performed by the Company’s buyers,
although certain store managers are authorized to purchase vehicles. On average, a buyer will purchase vehicles for three
stores. Buyers report to the store manager, or managers, for whom they buy and to a regional purchasing director. The
regional purchasing directors monitor the quantity and quality of vehicles purchased and compare the cost of similar vehicles
purchased among different buyers.
Generally, the Company’s buyers purchase vehicles between four and ten years of age with 60,000 to 125,000 miles, and
pay between $2,500 and $5,000 per vehicle. The Company focuses on providing basic transportation to its customers. The
Company generally does not purchase sports cars or luxury cars. Some of the more popular vehicles the Company sells
include the Ford Taurus and Escort, Chevrolet Lumina and Cavalier, Dodge Neon, Pontiac Grand Am and Oldsmobile Cutlass.
The Company also sells a number of trucks. Buyers inspect and test-drive every vehicle they purchase. Buyers attempt to
purchase vehicles that require little or no repair as the Company has limited facilities to repair or recondition vehicles.

●

Selling, Marketing and Advertising. Stores generally maintain an inventory of 15 to 75 vehicles depending on the maturity
of the dealership. Inventory turns over approximately 12-14 times each year. The selling price of the Company’s vehicles
typically ranges between $5,000 and $8,500, with an average of approximately $6,500 in fiscal 2004. Selling is done
principally by the store manager, assistant manager, manager trainee or sales associate. Sales associates are paid a commission
for sales that they make in addition to an hourly wage. Sales are made on an “as is” basis; however, customers are given an
option to purchase a four month or 4,000 mile service contract for $345 which covers certain vehicle components and
assemblies. For covered components and assemblies, the Company coordinates service with third party service centers with
which the Company typically has previously negotiated labor rates and mark-up percentages on parts. The majority of the
Company’s customers elect to purchase a service contract when purchasing a vehicle.
The Company’s objective is to offer its customers basic transportation at a fair price and treat each customer in such a
manner as to earn his or her repeat business. The Company attempts to build a positive reputation in each community where it
operates and generate new business from such reputation as well as from customer referrals. Approximately 10% to 15% of
the Company’s sales result from customer referrals. The Company recognizes repeat customers with silver, gold and platinum
plaques representing the purchase of five, ten and fifteen vehicles, respectively. These plaques are prominently displayed at
the dealership where the vehicles were purchased. For mature dealerships, as much as 40% of sales are to repeat customers.
The Company primarily advertises in local newspapers, on billboards and on the radio. In addition, periodically the
Company conducts promotional sales campaigns in order to increase sales.

●

Underwriting and Finance. The Company provides financing for substantially all of its customers who purchase a vehicle at
one of its stores. The Company does not provide financing to others, nor does it purchase retail installment contracts
originated by others. The Company’s installment sales contracts typically include down payments ranging from 0% to 17%
(average of 7%), terms ranging from 12 months to 36 months (average of 25 months), and annual interest charges ranging from
6% to 19% (average of 11%). The Company requires that payments be made on a weekly, bi-weekly, semi-monthly or
monthly basis to coincide with the day the customer is paid by his or her employer. Upon the customer and the Company
reaching a preliminary agreement as to financing terms, the Company obtains a credit application from the customer which
includes information regarding employment, residence and credit history, personal references and a detailed budget itemizing
the customer’s monthly income and expenses. Certain information is then verified by Company personnel. After the
verification process, the store manager makes the decision to accept, reject, or modify (perhaps obtain a greater down payment
or require an acceptable co-buyer) the proposed transaction. In general, the store manager attempts to assess the stability and
character of the applicant. The store manager who makes the credit decision is ultimately responsible for collecting the loan,
and his or her compensation is directly related to the collection results of his or her store.

●

Collections. All of the Company’s retail installment contracts are serviced by Company personnel at the store level. The
majority of the Company’s customers make their payments in person at the store where they purchased their vehicle, although
some customers send their payments through the mail. Each store closely monitors its customer accounts using the Company’s
proprietary receivables and collections software that stratifies past due accounts by the number of days past due. The
Company believes that the timely response to past due accounts is critical to its collections success.
The Company has established standards with respect to the percentage of accounts one and two weeks past due, the
percentage of accounts three or more weeks past due, and for larger stores, 21-30 days past due, 31-60 days past due and 61
plus days past due (delinquency standards), and the percentage of accounts where the vehicle was repossessed that month
(repossession standard). Store personnel (excluding the store manager) are paid a monthly bonus based upon growth in
receivables at their store (similar to growth in same store revenues). This bonus is paid only if the store has met its
delinquency and repossession standards for the month.
The Company works very hard to keep its delinquency percentages low, and not to repossess vehicles. Accounts one day
late are sent a notice in the mail. Accounts three days late are contacted by telephone. Notes from each telephone contact are
electronically maintained in the Company’s computer system. If a customer becomes severely delinquent in his or her
payments, and management determines that timely collection of future payments is not probable, the Company will take steps
to repossess the vehicle. The Company attempts to amicably resolve payment delinquencies prior to repossessing a vehicle.
Periodically, the Company enters into contract modifications with its customers to extend the time upon which the customer’s
payments are due. The Company only enters into a contract modification or extension if it believes such action will increase
the amount of monies the Company will ultimately realize on the customer’s account. For those vehicles that are repossessed,
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the majority are returned or surrendered by the customer on a voluntary basis. Other repossessions are performed by Company
personnel or third party repossession agents. Depending on the condition of a repossessed vehicle, it is either resold on a retail
basis through a Company store, or sold for cash to a wholesaler.
●

New Store Openings. The Company plans to add stores at the rate of 8% to 14% per year. Senior management, with the
assistance of the corporate office staff, makes decisions with respect to the communities in which to locate a new store and the
specific sites within those communities. New stores are typically located in the general proximity of existing stores to
facilitate the corporate office’s oversight of the Company’s stores.
The Company’s approach with respect to new store openings is one of gradual development. The manager in charge of a
new store is normally a recently promoted associate who was an assistant manager at a larger store or a manager trainee. The
facility may be of a modular nature or an existing structure. New stores operate with a low level of inventory and personnel.
As a result of the modest staffing level, the new store manager performs a variety of duties (i.e., selling, collecting, and
administrative tasks) during the early stages of his or her store’s operations. As the store develops and the customer base
grows, additional staff is hired.
Monthly sales levels at new stores are substantially less than sales levels at mature stores. Over time new stores gain
recognition in their communities, and a combination of customer referrals and repeat business generally facilitate strong sales
growth. Sales growth at new stores can exceed 20% per year for a number of years. Mature stores typically experience annual
sales growth, but at a lower percentage than new stores.
New stores are provided with up to $300,000 in capital from the corporate office during the first six to eight months of
operation. These funds are used principally to fund receivables growth. After this six to eight month start-up period, new
stores typically become cash flow positive. That is, receivables growth is funded from store profits rather than additional
borrowings from the corporate office. This limitation of capital to new, as well as existing, stores serves as an important
operating discipline. Essentially, stores must be profitable in order to grow. Typically, new stores are profitable within a few
months of opening.

●

Corporate Office Oversight and Management. The corporate office, based in Bentonville, Arkansas, consists of area
operations managers, regional vice presidents, regional purchasing directors, a vice president of purchasing, compliance
auditors, area collection managers and trainers, a vice president of collections, accounting and management information
systems personnel, administrative personnel and senior management. The corporate office monitors and oversees store
operations. The Company’s stores transmit and submit operating and financial information and reports to the corporate office
on a daily, weekly and monthly basis. This information includes cash receipts and disbursements, inventory and receivables
levels, receivables agings and sales and repossession data. The corporate office uses this information to compile Companywide reports, plan store visits and prepare monthly financial statements.
Periodically, area operations managers, regional vice presidents, compliance auditors and senior management visit the
Company’s stores to inspect, review and comment on operations. Often, the corporate office assists in training new managers
and other store level associates. In addition to financial results, the corporate office uses delinquency and repossession
standards and a point system to evaluate a store’s performance.
The Company’s store managers meet monthly on an area, regional or Company-wide basis. At these meetings corporate
office personnel provide training and recognize achievements of store managers. Near the end of every fiscal year the
respective area operations manager, regional vice president and senior management conduct “projection” meetings with each
store manager. At these meetings the year’s results are reviewed and ranked relative to other stores, and both quantitative and
qualitative goals are established for the upcoming year. The qualitative goals may focus on staff development, effective
delegation, organization skills and sometimes personal matters. Quantitatively, the Company always establishes a receivables
growth target (which is similar to a revenue growth target) and, depending on the circumstances, may establish delinquency,
repossession, or expense goals.
The corporate office is also responsible for establishing policy, maintaining the Company’s management information
system, conducting compliance audits, orchestrating new store openings and setting the direction for the Company.

Industry
●

Used Car Sales. The market for used car sales in the United States is significant. For calendar 2003, industry analysts
estimated used vehicle sales in the United States at $366 billion. Used car retail sales typically occur through franchised new
car dealerships that sell used cars or independent used car dealerships. The Company operates in the Buy Here/Pay Here
segment of the independent used car sales and finance market. Buy Here/Pay Here dealers sell and finance used cars to
individuals with limited credit histories or past credit problems. Buy Here/Pay Here dealers typically offer their customers
certain advantages over more traditional financing sources, such as broader and more flexible underwriting guidelines, flexible
payment terms (including scheduling payments on a weekly or bi-weekly basis to coincide with a customer’s payday), and the
ability to make payments in person, an important feature to individuals who may not have a checking account.
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●

Used Car Financing. The used automobile financing industry is served by traditional lending sources such as banks, savings
and loans, and captive finance subsidiaries of automobile manufacturers, as well as by independent finance companies and Buy
Here/Pay Here dealers. Despite significant opportunities, many of the traditional lending sources do not consistently provide
financing to individuals with limited credit histories or past credit problems. Management believes traditional lenders avoid
this market because of its high credit risk and the associated collection efforts.

Competition
The used automotive retailing industry is highly competitive and fragmented. The Company competes principally with other
independent Buy Here/Pay Here dealers, and to a lesser degree with (i) the used vehicle retail operations of franchised automobile
dealerships, (ii) independent used vehicle dealers, and (iii) individuals who sell used vehicles in private transactions. The Company
competes for both the purchase and resale of used vehicles.
Management believes the principal competitive factors in the sale of its used vehicles include (i) the availability of financing to
consumers with limited credit histories or past credit problems, (ii) the breadth and quality of vehicle selection, (iii) pricing, (iv) the
convenience of a dealership’s location, (v) the option to purchase a service contract, and (vi) customer service. Management believes
that its dealerships are competitive in each of these areas.

Regulation and Licensing
The Company’s operations are subject to various federal, state, and local laws, ordinances and regulations pertaining to the sale and
financing of vehicles. Under various state laws, the Company’s dealerships must obtain a license in order to operate or relocate.
These laws also regulate advertising and sales practices. The Company’s financing activities are subject to federal truth-in-lending
and equal credit opportunity regulations as well as state and local motor vehicle finance laws, installment finance laws, usury laws and
other installment sales laws. Among other things, these laws require that the Company limit or prescribe terms of the contracts it
originates, require specified disclosures to customers, restrict collection practices, limit the Company’s right to repossess and sell
collateral, and prohibit discrimination against customers on the basis of certain characteristics including age, race, gender and marital
status.
The states in which the Company operates impose limits on interest rates the Company can charge on its loans. These limits are
generally based on either (i) a specified margin above the federal primary credit rate, (ii) the age of the vehicle, or (iii) a fixed rate.
Management believes the Company is in compliance in all material respects with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,
ordinances and regulations. However, the adoption of additional laws, changes in the interpretation of existing laws, or the Company’s
entrance into jurisdictions with more stringent regulatory requirements could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s used
vehicle sales and finance business.

Employees
As of April 30, 2004 the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, employed approximately 700 persons full time. None of
the Company's employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement and the Company believes that its relations with its
employees are good.
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Executive Officers
The executive officers of the Company are as follows:

Name

Age

Position with the Company

Tilman J. Falgout, III……………………………..

55

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer,
General Counsel and Director

William H. Henderson……………………………

40

Vice Chairman of the Board, President and Director

Mark D. Slusser…………………………………..

46

Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Eddie L. Hight…………………………………….

41

Chief Operating Officer

Tilman J. Falgout, III has served as Chairman of the Board since May 2004, Chief Executive Officer of the Company since May
2002, General Counsel since 1995 and a director of the Company since 1992. From 1995 until May 2002, Mr. Falgout also served as
Executive Vice President of the Company. From 1978 through June 1995, Mr. Falgout was a partner in the law firm of Stumpf &
Falgout, Houston, Texas.
William H. Henderson has served as Vice Chairman of the Board since May 2004 and as President of the Company since May 2002.
From 1999 until May 2002, Mr. Henderson served as Chief Operating Officer of Car-Mart. From 1992 through 1998, Mr. Henderson
served as General Manager of Car-Mart. From 1987 to 1992, Mr. Henderson primarily held the positions of District Manager and
Regional Manager at Car-Mart.
Mark D. Slusser has served as Chief Financial Officer of the Company since 1989 and as Secretary since 1990. From 1981 until
joining the Company, Mr. Slusser held various positions with Ernst & Young LLP including Senior Manager.
Eddie L. Hight has served as Chief Operating Officer of the Company since May 2002. From 1984 until May 2002, Mr. Hight held a
number of positions at Car-Mart including Store Manager and Regional Manager.

Item 2. Properties
As of April 30, 2004 the Company leased approximately 80% of its facilities, including dealerships and the Company’s corporate
offices. These facilities are located principally in the states of Arkansas, Oklahoma, Texas, Kentucky and Missouri. The Company’s
corporate offices are located in approximately 8,000 square feet of leased space in Bentonville, Arkansas.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
In February 2001 and May 2002, the Company was added as a defendant in two similar actions which were originally filed in
December 1998 against approximately twenty defendants (the “Defendants”) by Astoria Entertainment, Inc. (“Astoria”). One action
was filed in the Civil District Court for the Parish of Orleans, Louisiana (the “State Claims”) and the other was filed in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana (the “Federal Claims”). In these actions, Astoria alleges the Defendants
conspired to eliminate Astoria from receiving one of the fifteen riverboat gaming licenses that were awarded by the State of Louisiana
in 1993 and 1994, at a time when a former subsidiary of the Company was involved in riverboat gaming in Louisiana. Astoria seeks
unspecified damages including lost profits. In August 2001, the Federal court dismissed all of the Federal Claims with prejudice. A
motion to dismiss the State Claims is pending before the state district court of appeals. The Company believes the State Claims are
without merit and intends to vigorously contest liability in this matter.
Further, in the ordinary course of business, the Company has become a defendant in various types of other legal proceedings.
Although the Company cannot determine at this time the amount of exposure from lawsuits, if any, management does not expect the
final outcome of any of these actions, individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders of the Company during the fourth quarter ended April 30, 2004.

8

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
The Company's common stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol CRMT. The following table sets
forth, by fiscal quarter, the high and low closing sales prices reported by NASDAQ for the Company's common stock for the periods
indicated.
Fiscal 2004
Low
High
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

$

19.00
33.80
37.38
34.29

$

14.88
19.22
24.25
25.05

Fiscal 2003
High
$

16.99
14.45
14.89
15.00

Low
$

10.70
9.80
10.80
11.40

As of June 7, 2004, there were approximately 1,160 stockholders of record. This number excludes stockholders holding stock under
nominee security position listings.
Since its inception the Company has paid no dividends on its common stock. The Company currently intends to follow a policy of
retaining earnings to finance future growth. Payment of dividends in the future will be determined by the Company's Board of
Directors and will depend upon, among other things, the Company's future earnings, operations, capital requirements and surplus,
general financial condition, contractual restrictions that may exist, and such other factors as the Board of Directors may deem relevant.
The Company’s revolving credit facility prohibits distributions from Car-Mart to the Company beyond the repayment of an
intercompany loan from the Company to Car-Mart ($8.5 million at April 30, 2004). Thus, the Company is limited in the amount of
dividends or other distributions it can make to its shareholders without the consent of its lender.
In January 2002, the Company issued a warrant to purchase 40,000 shares of its common stock at an exercise price of $5.00 per
share to Epoch Financial Group, Inc. (“Epoch”), a firm that provides investor relations services. In January 2003, the Company issued
a warrant to purchase 5,000 shares of its common stock at an exercise price of $13.04 per share to Epoch. In July 2003 and April
2004, the Company issued warrants to purchase 10,000 and 2,500 shares of its common stock at exercise prices of $17.75 and $27.35
per share, respectively, to Epoch. During fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2004, the Company issued 12,331 and 10,650 shares of its common
stock, respectively, pursuant to partial exercises of the warrants held by Epoch.

In March 2002 the Company acquired all of the remaining shares of Car-Mart common stock it did not previously own
from the Car-Mart minority shareholders by issuing 146,518 shares of the Company’s common stock (valued at
approximately $1.4 million) and paying approximately $1.6 million in cash.
As discussed in Note J to the consolidated financial statements contained herein, the Company presently has three
stock option plans that provide for the issuance of shares of the Company’s common stock upon the exercise of
outstanding stock options. As of April 30, 2004, there were a total of 338,927 shares of common stock subject to
issuance upon the exercise of outstanding stock options at a weighted-average exercise price of $7.44 per share. Further,
at April 30, 2004, there were an additional 77,745 shares of the Company’s common stock set aside for future option
grants pursuant to the Company’s stock option plans. At April 30, 2004, the Company also had stock purchase warrants
outstanding covering a total of 42,000 shares of common stock at an average exercise price of $9.80 per share.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The financial data set forth below was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto, and Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations contained elsewhere herein. (In thousands, except per share amounts.)

2004

2003

Years Ended April 30,
2002 (a)

2001

Revenues

$ 176,184

$ 154,885

$ 127,924

$ 106,754

$

90,970

Income (loss) from continuing operations

$

15,639

$ 13,569

$

(1,136)

$

7,362

$

13,277

Net income (loss)

$

15,804

$

14,075

$ (14,306)

$

5,963

$

14,836

Diluted EPS – continuing operations

$

1.96

$

1.73

$

$

.92

$

1.38

Total assets
Total debt
Stockholders’ equity
Shares outstanding

$ 117,241
$ 22,534
$ 84,577
7,758

$ 101,841
$ 25,968
$ 65,961
7,208

(.17)

$ 128,142
$ 39,792
$ 52,813
6,944

2000 (b)

$ 302,520
$ 41,584
$ 58,932
6,980

$ 294,008
$ 37,319
$ 58,867
8,248

(a) – Fiscal 2002 includes after tax charges totaling $10.7 million pertaining to (i) non-cash stock option compensation ($6.3
million), (ii) the write-down of certain emerging technology/Internet investments and equipment ($2.6 million), and (iii)
severance and office closing costs in connection with the decision to relocate the Company’s corporate headquarters to
Bentonville, Arkansas ($1.8 million) where Car-Mart is based.
(b) – Fiscal 2000 includes an after tax gain on the sale of securities of $7.0 million.

10

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company's consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere
in this annual report.

Overview

America’s Car-Mart, Inc., a Texas corporation (the “Company”), is the largest publicly held automotive retailer in the
United States focused exclusively on the “Buy Here/Pay Here” segment of the used car market. References to the
Company typically include the Company’s consolidated subsidiaries. The Company’s operations are principally conducted
through its two operating subsidiaries, America’s Car-Mart, Inc., an Arkansas corporation, (“Car-Mart of Arkansas”) and
Colonial Auto Finance, Inc. (“Colonial”). Collectively, Car-Mart of Arkansas and Colonial are referred to herein as
“Car-Mart”. The Company primarily sells older model used vehicles and provides financing for substantially all of its
customers. Many of the Company’s customers have limited financial resources and would not qualify for conventional
financing as a result of limited credit histories or past credit problems. As of April 30, 2004, the Company operated 70
stores located primarily in small cities throughout the South-Central United States.
In October 2001, the Company made the decision to sell all of its operating subsidiaries except Car-Mart, and relocate its corporate
headquarters to Bentonville, Arkansas where Car-Mart is based. As a result of this decision, all of the Company’s other operating
subsidiaries were sold and their operating results have been included in discontinued operations. Discontinued operations are
described in Note P in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
Car-Mart has been operating since 1981. Car-Mart has grown its revenues at a compound annual rate of 19% over the last eight
years. Finance receivables tend to grow at about the same rate as revenues. Growth results from same store revenue growth and the
addition of new stores. Revenue growth in fiscal 2004 (14%) was lower than the Company’s historical average partially as a result of
selling more lower-priced vehicles and a slower pace of opening new stores. The Company expects revenues to increase about 1617% in fiscal 2005.
The Company’s primary focus is on collections. Each store handles its own collections with supervisory involvement of the
corporate office. Over the last nine years Car-Mart’s credit losses as a percentage of sales have ranged between approximately 17%
and 21%. Credit losses in fiscal 2004 were on the high end of the range (21.3%) partially as a result of selling more lower-priced
vehicles. Lower-priced vehicles tend to have more mechanical difficulties that result in a higher level of repossessions. Late in fiscal
2004 the Company substantially reduced the sale of lower-priced vehicles. The Company expects credit losses, as a percentage of
sales, to decrease in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004.
The Company’s gross margins as a percentage of sales have been fairly consistent from year to year. Over the last nine years CarMart’s gross margins as a percentage of sales have ranged between approximately 43% and 48%. Gross margins as a percentage of
sales in fiscal 2004 were on the high end of the range (47.7%) partially as a result of selling more lower-priced vehicles. The
Company’s gross margins are set based upon the cost of the vehicle purchased with lower-priced vehicles having higher gross margin
percentages. As a result of the Company’s decision late in fiscal 2004 to substantially reduce the sale of lower-priced vehicles, the
Company expects gross margins, as a percentage of sales, to decrease in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004.
Hiring, training, and retaining qualified associates are a continuing focus for the Company. The rate at which the Company adds
new stores is oftentimes limited by the number of trained managers the Company has at its disposal. In fiscal 2005, the Company
intends to add resources to increase its ability to train new store managers and corporate office management personnel.
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Consolidated Operations
(Operating Statement Dollars in Thousands)

Operating Statement:
Revenues:
Sales
Interest income
Total
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales
Selling, gen and admin
Provision for credit losses
Interest expense
Depreciation and amort
Stock option compensation
Restructuring charge
Write-down of invest/equip
Total
Pretax income

2004

Years Ended April 30,
2003

2002

$163,589
12,595
176,184

$145,014
9,871
154,885

$118,642
9,282
127,924

85,510
29,671
34,767
1,114
321

77,073
27,417
26,897
1,686
299

151,383

133,372

62,965
22,326
23,136
3,022
284
7,329
2,732
3,928
125,722

$ 24,801

$ 21,513

24,281
67.0
362
$ 6,506
9.8%
10.3%

22,022
61.2
360
$ 6,386
15.5%
9.4%

$

2,202

% Change
2004
2003
vs.
vs.
2003
2002
12.8%
27.6
13.8

22.2%
6.3
21.1

2004

As a % of Sales
2003

2002

100.0%
7.7
107.7

100.0%
6.8
106.8

100.0%
7.8
107.8

10.9
8.2
29.3
(33.9)
7.4

22.4
22.8
16.3
(44.2)
5.3

52.3
18.1
21.3
.7
.2

53.1
18.9
18.5
1.2
.2

13.5

NM

92.5

92.0

53.1
18.8
19.5
2.5
.2
6.2
2.3
3.3
106.0

15.3

NM

15.2

14.8

1.9

NM – Not meaningful.

Operating Data:
Retail units sold
Average stores in operation
Average units sold per store
Average retail sales price
Same store revenue growth
Receivables avg interest rate

18,658
52.5
355
$ 6,126
14.1%
10.4%

10.3%
9.5
.7
1.9

18.0%
16.6
1.4
4.2

2004 Compared to 2003
Revenues increased $21.3 million, or 13.8%, in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 principally as a result of (i) revenue growth
from stores that operated a full twelve months in both periods ($12.3 million, or 9.8%), (ii) revenue growth from stores opened during
fiscal 2003 or stores that opened or closed a satellite location during fiscal 2004 or fiscal 2003 ($5.1 million), and (iii) revenues from
stores opened during fiscal 2004 ($3.9 million).
Same store revenue growth slowed to 9.8% in fiscal 2004 from 15.5% in fiscal 2003 principally as a result of a smaller increase in
the average retail sales price in fiscal 2004 (1.9%) as compared to fiscal 2003 (4.2%), and more conservative underwriting practices
beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. The slowing of growth in the average retail sales price stems from a decision at the
beginning of fiscal 2004 to sell a higher percentage of lower-priced vehicles. Although lower-priced vehicles have higher gross
margin percentages, and are more affordable than higher-priced vehicles, selling lower-priced vehicles has a negative impact on
revenue growth, and, as discussed below, loans on lower-priced vehicles have higher charge-off experience than loans on higherpriced vehicles. As a result of the negative impact on revenue growth and the higher charge-off experience, during the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2004 the Company decided to substantially reduce its purchase and sale of lower-priced vehicles and began purchasing and
selling slightly higher-priced vehicles.
Revenue growth slowed to 13.8% in fiscal 2004 as compared to 21.1% in fiscal 2003 principally as a result of (i) the lower same
store revenue growth discussed above, (ii) fewer new lot openings in fiscal 2004 (seven new lots opened, one satellite lot closed) as
compared to fiscal 2003 (nine new lots opened), and (iii) the timing of new lot openings in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 (lot
openings in fiscal 2004 occurred later in the year as compared to fiscal 2003). Presently, the Company plans to open eight new stores
in fiscal 2005.
Cost of sales as a percentage of sales decreased to 52.3% in fiscal 2004 as compared to 53.1% in fiscal 2003. The decrease was
principally the result of (i) selling a higher percentage of lower-priced vehicles during the first nine months of fiscal 2004 (lowerpriced vehicles have higher gross margin percentages than higher-priced vehicles), (ii) the Company’s decision in late December 2003
to raise prices by about $200, or 3%, on most of the vehicles it sells, and (iii) encouraging store managers to more closely adhere to
the Company’s pricing matrix and not to use their discretionary authority to discount the sales price of vehicles.
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Selling, general and administrative expense as a percentage of sales decreased to 18.1% in fiscal 2004 as compared to 18.9% in
fiscal 2003. The decrease was principally the result of (i) lower compensation expense at its Irving, Texas office in connection with
the relocation of the Company’s principal headquarters from Irving, Texas to Bentonville, Arkansas during fiscal 2003, and (ii) lower
compensation expense in connection with a change in the senior management bonus program, partially offset by higher insurance and
advertising costs.
Provision for credit losses as a percentage of sales increased to 21.3% in fiscal 2004 as compared to 18.5% in fiscal 2003. The
increase was primarily the result of higher charge-offs as a percentage of sales and an increase of the Company’s allowance for credit
losses as a percentage of finance receivable principal balances. As discussed above, the Company believes the increase in charge-offs
was partially attributable to a decision at the beginning of fiscal 2004 to sell a higher percentage of lower-priced vehicles. Lowerpriced vehicles have higher margins on a percentage basis and are more affordable to the Company’s customers. However, historical
data indicates that loans on lower-priced vehicles have higher charge-off experience than loans on higher-priced vehicles. As a result
of the negative impact on revenue growth (as discussed above) and higher than normal charge-off experience, during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company decided to substantially reduce its purchase and sale of lower-priced vehicles and began
purchasing and selling slightly higher-priced vehicles.
In February 2004 the Company formally adopted additional delinquency standards for its larger stores. The additional delinquency
standards prescribe the percentage of accounts at larger stores that can be 21-30 days past due, 31-60 days past due and over 60 days
past due. Previously, the Company only had delinquency standards for accounts one and two weeks past due and three or more weeks
past due. As a result of the tightening of its delinquency standards, at April 30, 2004 the percentage of accounts over 30 days past due
had been reduced to 3.0%, from 3.9% at April 30, 2003. The Company believes that in the long run the adoption of the additional
delinquency standards will assist the Company in reducing charge-offs, as well as maintaining the percentage of accounts over 30 days
past due at historically lower levels. With the additional delinquency standards, store managers and collection personnel are
motivated (monthly store team bonuses are tied to meeting delinquency and repossession standards) to address severely past due
accounts on a more timely basis, which management believes will result in more accounts being “saved”, rather than charged-off.
As a result of the higher charge-offs discussed above, the Company determined it was necessary to increase its overall allowance
for credit losses. During fiscal 2004, the Company increased its allowance for credit losses by 120 basis points, from 18.25% of
finance receivable principal balances at April 30, 2003, to 19.45% of finance receivable principal balances at April 30, 2004.
Interest expense as a percentage of sales decreased to .7% in fiscal 2004 as compared to 1.2% in fiscal 2003. The decrease was
principally the result of (i) a decrease in the rate charged on the Company’s revolving credit facility (the rate was reduced by 50 basis
points in November 2003), and (ii) a lower level of borrowings relative to the sales volume of the Company.

2003 Compared to 2002
Revenues increased $27.0 million, or 21.1%, in fiscal 2003 as compared to fiscal 2002 principally as a result of (i) revenue growth
from stores that operated a full twelve months in both periods ($15.8 million, or 15.5%), (ii) revenue growth from stores opened
during fiscal 2002 or stores that added a satellite location during fiscal 2003 or fiscal 2002 ($6.8 million), and (iii) revenues from
stores opened during fiscal 2003 ($4.8 million), partially offset by a decrease in other interest income ($.4 million).
Interest income as a percentage of sales decreased 1.0% to 6.8% in fiscal 2003 from 7.8% in fiscal 2002. The decrease was
principally the result of a decrease in the maximum interest rate that can be charged on Arkansas originated loans. Interest charged on
Arkansas originated loans is limited to the federal primary credit rate plus 5.0%. As of April 30, 2003, approximately 69% of the
Company’s finance receivables were originated in Arkansas.
Cost of sales as a percentage of sales was 53.1% in both fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002.
Selling, general and administrative expense as a percentage of sales increased to 18.9% in fiscal 2003 as compared to 18.8% in
fiscal 2002. The increase was principally the result of (i) changing the staffing policy at the store level in the middle of fiscal 2002
such that more personnel are employed at the same number of active customer accounts (store staffing levels are based upon the
number of active customer accounts), (ii) creating several new positions at the corporate office in the middle of fiscal 2002 to assist in
managing the Company’s growing business, and (iii) higher insurance costs, partially offset by a reduction in compensation and office
expenses at its Irving, Texas office in connection with the relocation of the Company’s principal headquarters from Irving, Texas to
Bentonville, Arkansas during fiscal 2003.
Provision for credit losses as a percentage of sales decreased to 18.5% in fiscal 2003 as compared to 19.5% in fiscal 2002. The
decrease was principally the result of (i) increased staffing at the store and corporate office levels, and (ii) improvements in the
Company’s underwriting and collection practices.
Interest expense as a percentage of sales decreased to 1.2% in fiscal 2003 as compared to 2.5% in fiscal 2002. The decrease was
principally the result of (i) a decrease in the prime interest rate (interest charged on the Company’s revolving credit facility fluctuates
with the prime interest rate), and (ii) a lower level of borrowings relative to the sales volume of the Company.
During fiscal 2002 the Company recorded a $7.3 million non-cash charge related to stock option based compensation. The charge
pertains to the Company’s 1997 stock option plan which contained a “cashless” exercise feature. Due to such cashless exercise
feature, options granted under the plan were characterized as “variable” options under generally accepted accounting principles.
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Under variable option accounting, changes in the market value of the Company’s common stock generally result in charges or credits
to stock-based compensation with an offsetting entry to additional paid-in capital. In order to avoid future stock option based
compensation charges or credits, effective May 1, 2002 the Company rescinded the cashless exercise provision of its 1997 Plan.
Also during fiscal 2002, the Company recorded a $2.7 million restructuring charge (severance and office closing costs) in
connection with the decision to relocate its corporate headquarters from Irving, Texas to Bentonville, Arkansas. Further, during fiscal
2002, the Company wrote-down the carrying value of two emerging technology/Internet investments and certain equipment by $3.9
million that were deemed to be impaired. The emerging technology/Internet investments were made a few years prior to the
Company’s decision in October 2001 to focus exclusively on the business of Car-Mart.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table sets forth certain historical information with respect to the Company’s statements of cash flows (in thousands):
Years Ended April 30,
2003

2004
Operating activities:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Finance receivables, net
Stock option based compensation
Other
Total

$

Investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment and other
Note collections from discontinued operations
Sale of discontinued operations
Purchase of minority interest
Total
Financing activities:
Revolving credit facility, net
Repayment of other debt
Purchase of common stock
Exercise of stock options and warrants
Total

15,639
(12,325)

$

$

$

(1,136)
(13,110)
7,329
7,658
741

676
3,990

10,573
7,863

(1,399)

(2,168)
2,079
6,795

(1,399)

6,706

(1,562)
(1,529)

(3,434)

(6,323)
(7,500)
(2,689)
1,497
(15,015)

2,524
(325)
(1,013)
114
1,300

(1,646)
2,584
(2,496)

Cash provided by (used in) continuing operations

13,569
(16,279)

2002

95

$

(446)

(1,394)
1,427

$

512

The Company generates cash flow from income from continuing operations. Most or all of this cash is used to fund finance
receivables growth. To the extent finance receivables growth exceeds income from continuing operations, generally the Company
increases its borrowings under its revolving credit facility. For the most part, the Company’s growth is self-funded.
At April 30, 2004 the Company had $1.1 million of cash on hand and an additional $17.0 million of availability under its $39.5
million revolving credit facility.
On a short-term basis, the Company’s principal sources of liquidity include income from continuing operations and borrowings
from its revolving credit facility. On a longer-term basis, the Company expects its principal sources of liquidity to consist of income
from continuing operations and borrowings from a revolving credit facility. Further, while the Company has no present plans to issue
debt or equity securities, the Company believes, if necessary, it could raise additional capital through the issuance of such securities.
The Company expects to use cash to (i) grow its finance receivables portfolio by approximately the same percentage that its sales
grow, (ii) purchase property and equipment of approximately $2 million in the next twelve months in connection with opening new
stores and refurbishing existing stores, and (iii) to the extent excess cash is available, reduce debt. In addition, from time to time the
Company may use cash to repurchase its common stock.
The Company’s revolving credit facility matures in April 2006. The Company expects that it will be able to renew or refinance its
revolving credit facility on or before the scheduled maturity date. The Company believes it will have adequate liquidity to satisfy its
capital needs for the foreseeable future.
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Contractual Payment Obligations
The following is a summary of the Company’s contractual obligations as of April 30, 2004 (in thousands):
Payments Due by Period
Contractual Obligations
Debt
Operating leases
Total

Less Than
1 Year

Total

1-3 Years

More Than
5 Years

3-5 Years

$

22,534
2,310

$

1,407

$

22,534
768

$

135

$

-

$

24,844

$

1,407

$

23,302

$

135

$

-

Impact of Inflation
Inflation has not historically been a significant factor impacting the Company’s results.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company has entered into operating leases for approximately 80% of its store and office facilities. Generally these leases are
for periods of three to five years and usually contain multiple renewal options. The Company expects to continue to lease the majority
of its store and office facilities under arrangements substantially consistent with the past. Other than its operating leases, the Company
is not a party to any off-balance sheet arrangement that management believes is reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on
the Company’s financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that
is material to investors.

Critical Accounting Policies
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America
requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions in determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from the Company’s estimates. The Company believes the most significant estimate
made in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements relates to the determination of its allowance for credit
losses, which is discussed below. The Company’s accounting policies are discussed in Note B in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
The Company maintains an allowance for credit losses at a level it considers sufficient to cover anticipated losses in the collection
of its finance receivables. The allowance for credit losses is based primarily upon historical credit loss experience, with consideration
given to recent credit loss trends and changes in loan characteristics (i.e., average amount financed and term), delinquency levels,
collateral values, economic conditions, underwriting and collection practices, and management’s expectations of future credit losses.
Judgment is necessary to determine the proper weight to place on certain quantitative and non-quantitative information such as
changes in underwriting and collection practices, economic conditions and credit loss trends. Further, there is no certainty that future
credit losses will resemble historical credit losses. Consequently, it is at least reasonably possible that actual credit losses could be
materially different from the recorded allowance for credit losses if future conditions are materially different from the future
conditions assumed by the Company, or if management improperly weights current credit loss information.

Seasonality
The Company’s automobile sales and finance business is seasonal in nature. The Company’s third fiscal quarter (November
through January) is historically the slowest period for car and truck sales. Many of the Company’s operating expenses such as
administrative personnel, rent and insurance are fixed and cannot be reduced during periods of decreased sales. Conversely, the
Company’s fourth fiscal quarter (February through April) is historically the busiest time for car and truck sales as many of the
Company’s customers use income tax refunds as a down payment on the purchase of a vehicle. Further, the Company experiences
seasonal fluctuations in its finance receivable credit losses. As a percentage of sales, the Company’s first and fourth fiscal quarters
tend to have lower credit losses (averaging 17.8% over the last eight years), while its second and third fiscal quarters tend to have
higher credit losses (averaging 19.7% over the last eight years).
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
The Company is exposed to market risk on its financial instruments from changes in interest rates. In particular, the Company has
exposure to changes in the federal primary credit rate and the prime interest rate of its lender. The Company does not use financial
instruments for trading purposes or to manage interest rate risk. The Company’s earnings are impacted by its net interest income,
which is the difference between the income earned on interest-bearing assets and the interest paid on interest-bearing notes payable.
As described below, a decrease in market interest rates would generally have an adverse effect on the Company’s profitability.
The Company’s financial instruments consist of fixed rate finance receivables and variable rate notes payable. The Company’s
finance receivables generally bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 6% to 19%. These finance receivables generally have remaining
maturities from one to 36 months. The Company’s borrowings contain variable interest rates that fluctuate with market interest rates
(i.e., the rate charged on the Company’s revolving credit facility fluctuates with the prime interest rate of its lender). However,
interest rates charged on finance receivables originated in the State of Arkansas are limited to the federal primary credit rate (2.0% at
April 30, 2004) plus 5.0%. Typically, the Company charges interest on its Arkansas loans at or near the maximum rate allowed by
law. Thus, while the interest rates charged on the Company’s loans do not fluctuate once established, new loans originated in
Arkansas are set at a spread above the federal primary credit rate which does fluctuate. At April 30, 2004, approximately 66% of the
Company’s finance receivables were originated in Arkansas. Assuming that this percentage is held constant for future loan
originations, the long-term effect of decreases in the federal primary credit rate would generally have a negative effect on the
profitability of the Company. This is the case because the amount of interest income lost on Arkansas originated loans would likely
exceed the amount of interest expense saved on the Company’s variable rate borrowings (assuming the prime interest rate of its lender
decreases by the same percentage as the decrease in the federal primary credit rate). The initial impact on profitability resulting from
a decrease in the federal primary credit rate and the rate charged on its variable interest rate borrowings would be positive, as the
immediate interest expense savings would outweigh the loss of interest income on new loan originations. However, as the amount of
new loans originated at the lower interest rate increases to an amount in excess of the amount of variable interest rate borrowings, the
effect on profitability would become negative.
The table below illustrates the estimated impact that hypothetical changes in the federal primary credit rate would have on the
Company’s continuing pretax earnings. The calculations assume (i) the increase or decrease in the federal primary credit rate remains
in effect for two years, (ii) the increase or decrease in the federal primary credit rate results in a like increase or decrease in the rate
charged on the Company’s variable rate borrowings, (iii) the principal amount of finance receivables ($128.7 million) and variable
interest rate borrowings ($22.5 million), and the percentage of Arkansas originated finance receivables (66%), remain constant during
the periods, and (iv) the Company’s historical collection and charge-off experience continues throughout the periods.
Increase (Decrease)
in Interest Rates
+2%
+1%
-1%
-2%

Year 1
Increase (Decrease)
in Pretax Earnings
(in thousands)
$
407
203
(203)
(407)

Year 2
Increase (Decrease)
in Pretax Earnings
(in thousands)
$
1,165
583
(583)
(1,165)

A similar calculation and table was prepared at April 30, 2003. The calculation and table were materially consistent with the
information provided above.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The following financial statements and accountant’s report are included in Item 8 of this report:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 30, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

16

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Stockholders and Board of Directors
America’s Car-Mart, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of America’s Car-Mart, Inc., as of April 30, 2004 and 2003, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended April
30, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of America’s Car-Mart, Inc. as of April 30, 2004 and 2003, and the consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended April 30, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Grant Thornton LLP
Dallas, Texas
June 8, 2004
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

America’s Car-Mart, Inc.

April 30, 2004
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Income tax receivable
Other receivables
Finance receivables, net
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Property and equipment, net

$

1,128,349

April 30, 2003
$

783,786
161,816
647,872
91,358,935
4,056,027
353,014
4,479,132

509,752
103,683,660
5,975,292
387,641
5,556,757

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Deferred tax liabilities, net
Revolving credit facility
Total liabilities

$

117,241,451

$

101,840,582

$

2,122,927
5,544,988
845,044
1,616,896
22,534,120
32,663,975

$

2,084,472
6,664,313
1,162,704
25,968,220
35,879,709

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share, 1,000,000 shares
authorized; none issued or outstanding
Common stock, par value $.01 per share, 50,000,000 shares authorized;
7,757,841 issued and outstanding (7,207,963 at April 30, 2003)
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity

77,578
33,138,765
51,361,133
84,577,476
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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117,241,451

72,080
30,332,106
35,556,687
65,960,873
$

101,840,582

Consolidated Statements of Operations

America’s Car-Mart, Inc.
Years Ended April 30,
2003

2004
Revenues:
Sales
Interest and other income

$

Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales
Selling, general and administrative
Provision for credit losses
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Stock option based compensation
Restructuring charge
Write-down of investments and equipment

Income from continuing operations
before taxes and minority interests

163,589,076
12,594,611
176,183,687

151,382,735

133,372,104

24,800,952

21,512,843

2,202,365

9,161,506

7,944,100

2,789,412
548,330

15,639,446

13,568,743

(1,135,377)

165,000

375,318
130,868

(13,169,637)

165,000

506,186

(13,169,637)

$

15,804,446

$

14,074,929

$

2.07
.02
2.09

$

1.93
.08
2.01

$

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Total

$
$

Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

1.96
.02
1.98

7,545,964
7,963,426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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118,641,750
9,282,085
127,923,835

62,965,215
22,326,241
23,135,926
3,022,156
283,641
7,328,554
2,732,106
3,927,631
125,721,470

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Total

$

77,073,294
27,417,225
26,896,608
1,685,774
299,203

Discontinued operations:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of taxes and minority interests
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes

Net income (loss)

145,014,142
9,870,805
154,884,947

85,510,497
29,670,849
34,766,496
1,113,840
321,053

Provision for income taxes
Minority interests
Income (loss) from continuing operations

$

2002

$

$
$

1.73
.07
1.80

7,015,992
7,828,744

$

$
$

$
$

(14,305,014)

(.17)
(1.94)
(2.11)

(.17)
(1.94)
(2.11)

6,795,461
6,795,461

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

America’s Car-Mart, Inc.

2004
Operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Subtract: Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Income (loss) from continuing operations

$

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from continuing
operations to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Stock option based compensation
Write-down of investments and equipment
Minority interests
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in finance receivables, net:
Finance receivable originations
Finance receivable collections
Provision for credit losses
Inventory acquired in repossession
Subtotal finance receivables

15,804,446
165,000
15,639,446

Years Ended April 30,
2003
$

321,053
454,192

14,074,929
506,186
13,568,743

2002
$

299,203
1,281,756

(14,305,014)
(13,169,637)
(1,135,377)

283,641
5,282,435
7,328,554
3,927,631
548,330

(151,379,959)
97,366,670
34,766,496
6,922,068
(12,324,725)

(131,447,487)
82,645,614
26,896,608
5,625,933
(16,279,332)

(108,035,124)
66,504,977
23,035,926
5,384,497
(13,109,724)

299,936
(1,919,265)
41,373
(1,080,870)
2,559,044
3,990,184

8,844,959
(515,489)
182,250
481,228

(1,707,511)
(527,245)
197,346
4,401,486
(4,748,553)
741,013

Income tax and other receivables
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment and other assets
Note collections from discontinued operations
Purchase of subsidiary minority interest
Sale of discontinued operations
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

7,863,318

(1,398,678)

(2,167,703)
2,078,661

(1,398,678)

Financing activities:
Exercise of stock options and warrants
Purchase of common stock
Proceeds from (repayments of) revolving credit facility, net
Repayments of other debt
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

2,583,517
(1,646,360)
(3,434,100)
(2,496,943)

(1,393,915)
1,426,697
(1,562,027)

6,795,000
6,705,958

(1,529,245)

1,497,119
(2,688,792)
(6,323,737)
(7,500,000)
(15,015,410)

113,498
(1,012,749)
2,524,269
(325,000)
1,300,018

Cash provided by (used in) continuing operations
Cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations

94,563
250,000

(446,134)
(2,520,506)

511,786
1,045,298

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at:
Beginning of period

344,563
783,786

(2,966,640)
3,750,426

1,557,084
2,193,342

Less:

End of period
Cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations

1,128,349

Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1,128,349

783,786

$

783,786

3,750,426
(2,520,506)
$

1,229,920

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

America’s Car-Mart, Inc.
For the Years Ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
Balance at April 30, 2001
Issuance of common stock
Stock options exercised
Stock warrants issued
Purchase of common stock
Tax benefit of options exercised
Stock option based compensation
Net loss
Balance at April 30, 2002
Stock options/warrants exercised
Stock warrant issued
Purchase of common stock
Tax benefit of options exercised
Net income
Balance at April 30, 2003
Stock options/warrants exercised
Stock warrants issued
Purchase of common stock
Tax benefit of options exercised
Net income
Balance at April 30, 2004

6,980,367

$ 69,804

146,518
84,198

1,466
842

(266,758)

(2,668)

Additional
Paid-In
Capital
$ 23,075,677

69,444

31,261,985

490,400

4,904

(226,762)

(2,268)

1,492,215
15,000
(2,686,524)
249,430

7,207,963

72,080

30,332,106

618,478

6,185

2,577,332
76,000
(1,645,673)
1,799,000

7,757,841

(687)

$ 77,578

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$ 35,786,772

1,446,123
112,656
70,000
(1,010,081)
239,056
7,328,554

6,944,325

(68,600)

Retained
Earnings

$ 33,138,765

Total
Stockholders’
Equity
$ 58,932,253

(14,305,014)

1,447,589
113,498
70,000
(1,012,749)
239,056
7,328,554
(14,305,014)

21,481,758

52,813,187

14,074,929

1,497,119
15,000
(2,688,792)
249,430
14,074,929

35,556,687

65,960,873

15,804,446

2,583,517
76,000
(1,646,360)
1,799,000
15,804,446

$ 51,361,133

$ 84,577,476

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

America’s Car-Mart, Inc.

A - Organization and Business
America’s Car-Mart, Inc., a Texas corporation (the “Company”), is the largest publicly held automotive retailer in the
United States focused exclusively on the “Buy Here/Pay Here” segment of the used car market. References to the
Company typically include the Company’s consolidated subsidiaries. The Company’s operations are principally conducted
through its two operating subsidiaries, America’s Car-Mart, Inc., an Arkansas corporation, (“Car-Mart of Arkansas”) and
Colonial Auto Finance, Inc. (“Colonial”). Collectively, Car-Mart of Arkansas and Colonial are referred to herein as
“Car-Mart”. The Company primarily sells older model used vehicles and provides financing for substantially all of its
customers. Many of the Company’s customers have limited financial resources and would not qualify for conventional
financing as a result of limited credit histories or past credit problems. As of April 30, 2004, the Company operated 70
stores located primarily in small cities throughout the South-Central United States.
In October 2001, the Company made the decision to sell all of its operating subsidiaries except Car-Mart, and relocate its corporate
headquarters to Bentonville, Arkansas where Car-Mart is based. As a result of this decision, all of the Company’s other operating
subsidiaries were sold and their operating results have been included in discontinued operations. The Company sold it last remaining
discontinued operation in July 2002. Discontinued operations are described in Note P.

B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of America’s Car-Mart, Inc. and all of its subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Concentration of Risk
The Company provides financing in connection with the sale of substantially all of its vehicles. These sales are made primarily to
customers residing in Arkansas, Oklahoma, Texas, Kentucky and Missouri, with approximately 66% of sales made to customers
residing in Arkansas. Periodically, the Company maintains cash in financial institutions in excess of the amounts insured by the
federal government. The Company’s revolving credit facility matures in April 2006. The Company expects that it will be able to
renew or refinance such credit facility on or before the scheduled maturity date.
Restrictions on Subsidiary Distributions/Dividends
The Company’s revolving credit facility prohibits distributions from Car-Mart to the Company beyond the repayment of an
intercompany loan from the Company to Car-Mart ($8.5 million at April 30, 2004). At April 30, 2004, the Company’s assets
(excluding its $73.0 million equity investment in Car-Mart) consisted of $.4 million in cash, $2.7 million in other assets and an $8.5
million receivable from Car-Mart. Thus, the Company is limited in the amount of dividends or other distributions it can make to its
shareholders without the consent of its lender. Beginning in February 2003, Car-Mart assumed substantially all of the operating costs
of the Company.
Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Cash equivalents generally consist of interest-bearing money market accounts.
Finance Receivables, Repossessions and Charge-offs and Allowance for Credit Losses
The Company originates installment sale contracts from the sale of used vehicles at its dealerships. Finance receivables consist of
contractually scheduled payments from installment contracts net of unearned finance charges and an allowance for credit losses.
Unearned finance charges represent the balance of interest income remaining from the total interest to be earned over the term of the
related installment contract. An account is considered delinquent when a contractually scheduled payment has not been received by
the scheduled payment date. At April 30, 2004, 3.0% of the Company’s finance receivable balances were 30 days or more past due.
The Company takes steps to repossess a vehicle when the customer becomes severely delinquent in his or her payments, and
management determines that timely collection of future payments is not probable. Accounts are charged-off after the expiration of a
statutory notice period for repossessed accounts, or when management determines that timely collection of future payments is not
probable for accounts where the Company has been unable to repossess the vehicle.
The Company maintains an allowance for credit losses at a level it considers sufficient to cover estimated losses in the collection of
its finance receivables. The allowance for credit losses is based primarily upon historical and recent credit loss experience, with
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consideration given to changes in loan characteristics (i.e., average amount financed and term), delinquency levels, collateral values,
economic conditions, underwriting and collection practices, and management’s expectations of future credit losses. The allowance for
credit losses is periodically reviewed by management with any changes reflected in current operations. Although it is at least
reasonably possible that events or circumstances could occur in the future that are not presently foreseen which could cause actual
credit losses to be materially different from the recorded allowance for credit losses, the Company believes that it has given
appropriate consideration to all relevant factors and has made reasonable assumptions in determining the allowance for credit losses.
Inventory
Inventory consists of used vehicles and is valued at the lower of cost or market on a specific identification basis. Vehicle
reconditioning costs are capitalized as a component of inventory. Repossessed vehicles are recorded at the lower of cost or market,
which approximates wholesale value. The cost of used vehicles sold is determined using the specific identification method.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for additions, renewals and improvements are capitalized. Costs of repairs
and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is computed principally using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Buildings

3 to 7 years
5 to 39 years
18 to 39 years

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of
an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying values of the impaired assets exceed the fair value of
such assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.
Income Taxes
Income taxes are accounted for under the liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined
based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates
expected to apply in the years in which these temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
Revenue Recognition
Revenues are generated principally from the sale of used vehicles, which in most cases includes a service contract, and interest
income and late fees earned on finance receivables.
Revenues from the sale of used vehicles are recognized when the sales contract is signed, the customer has taken possession of the
vehicle and, if applicable, financing has been approved. Revenues from the sale of service contracts are recognized ratably over the
four month service contract period. Service contract revenues are included in sales. Interest income is recognized on all active
finance receivable accounts using the interest method. Late fees are recognized when collected and are included in interest income.
Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and consist principally of radio and print media marketing costs. Advertising costs
amounted to $1,616,000, $1,349,000 and $964,000 for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Employee Benefit Plan
The Company has a 401(k) plan for all of its employees meeting certain eligibility requirements. The plan provides for voluntary
employee contributions and the Company matches 50% of employee contributions up to a maximum of 2% of each employee’s
compensation. The Company contributed approximately $142,000, $117,000 and $149,000 to the plan for the years ended April 30,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share takes into consideration the potentially dilutive effect of common stock equivalents,
such as outstanding stock options and warrants, which if exercised or converted into common stock would then share in the earnings
of the Company. In computing diluted earnings per share, the Company utilizes the treasury stock method and anti-dilutive securities
are excluded.
Stock Option Plan
The Company accounts for its stock option plan in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”)
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. Prior to May 1, 2002, certain of the
Company’s options were subject to variable option accounting as a result of containing a “cashless” exercise feature. Under variable
option accounting, changes in the market value of the Company’s common stock generally result in charges or credits to stock-based
compensation with an offsetting entry to additional paid-in capital. Effective May 1, 2002, the Company rescinded the cashless
exercise feature of its stock options (see Note L).
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Had the Company determined compensation cost on the date of grant based upon the fair value of its stock options under SFAS No.
123, the Company’s pro forma net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share would be as follows using the Black-Scholes optionpricing model with the assumptions detailed below. The estimated weighted average fair value of options granted using the BlackScholes option-pricing model was $8.68, $6.37 and $3.00 per share for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Years Ended April 30,
2003

2004
Reported net income (loss)
Less fair value compensation cost, net of tax
Pro forma net income (loss)

$
$

15,804,446
(42,966)
15,761,480

$
$

14,074,929
(307,621)
13,767,308

2002
$
$

(14,305,014)
(14,305,014)

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
As reported
Pro forma

$
$

2.09
2.09

$
$

2.01
1.96

$
$

(2.11)
(2.11)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
As reported
Pro forma

$
$

1.98
1.98

$
$

1.80
1.76

$
$

(2.11)
(2.11)

Assumptions:
Expected dividend yield
Risk-free interest rate
Expected volatility
Expected life

0.0%
4.3%
50.0%
5 years

0.0%
4.5%
50.0%
5 years

0.0%
5.0%
50.0%
5 years

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” (“SFAS No. 149”) was issued in April 2003 and is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003.
SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting of derivatives, including derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” The
adoption of SFAS No. 149 did not have any impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilities and Equity” (“SFAS 150”) was issued in May 2003 and is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after
May 31, 2003. SFAS 150 establishes standards for classification and measurement of certain financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equity. The adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have any impact on the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” an
Interpretation of APB No. 50 (“FIN 46”) was issued in January 2003 and was amended in December 2003. FIN 46 is effective in
February 2003 for all new variable interest entities created or acquired. For variable interest entities created or acquired before
February 2003, FIN 46 is effective in February 2004. FIN 46 requires consolidation of a variable interest entity if a company’s
variable interest absorbs a majority of the entity’s losses or receives a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or both. The
adoption of FIN 46 did not have any impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts in the accompanying financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the fiscal 2004
presentation.
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C - Finance Receivables
The Company originates installment sale contracts from the sale of used vehicles at its dealerships. These installment sale contracts
typically include interest rates ranging from 6% to 19% per annum, are collateralized by the vehicle sold and provide for payments
over periods ranging from 12 to 36 months. The components of finance receivables as of April 30, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:
April 30,
2004
Gross contract amount
Unearned finance charges
Allowance for credit losses

2003

$

140,169,258
(11,449,631)
(25,035,967)

$

121,013,893
(9,259,863)
(20,395,095)

$

103,683,660

$

91,358,935

Changes in the finance receivables allowance for credit losses for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:
Years Ended April 30,
2003

2004
Balance at beginning of year
Provision for credit losses
Net charge-offs
Balance at end of year

2002

$

20,395,095
34,766,496
(30,125,624)

$

17,042,609
26,896,608
(23,544,122)

$

14,066,782
23,035,926
(20,060,099)

$

25,035,967

$

20,395,095

$

17,042,609

D - Property and Equipment
A summary of property and equipment as of April 30, 2004 and 2003 is as follows:
April 30,
2004
Land
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
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2003

$

2,002,927
1,770,244
707,818
2,034,481
(958,713)

$

1,621,841
1,142,980
630,065
1,844,191
(759,945)

$

5,556,757

$

4,479,132

E - Accrued Liabilities
A summary of accrued liabilities as of April 30, 2004 and 2003 is as follows:
April 30,
2004
Compensation
Interest
Cash overdraft
Deferred revenue
Subsidiary redeemable preferred stock
Other

2003

$

2,196,977
87,770
1,068,743
1,312,509
500,000
378,989

$

3,520,548
101,214
1,145,112
1,269,430
100,000
528,009

$

5,544,988

$

6,664,313

F – Revolving Credit Facility
A summary of revolving credit facility as of April 30, 2004 and 2003 is as follows:

Lender
Bank of Oklahoma

Facility
Amount
$39.5 million

Revolving Credit Facility
Interest
Rate
Maturity
Prime
Apr 2006

Balance at
April 30, 2004
April 30, 2003
$ 22,534,120
$ 25,968,220

The Company’s revolving credit facility is collateralized by substantially all the assets of the Company including finance
receivables and inventory. Interest is payable monthly and the principal balance is due at the maturity of the facility. Interest is
charged at the bank’s prime lending rate per annum (4.00% at April 30, 2004). Prior to November 30, 2003, interest was charged at
the bank’s prime lending rate plus .5% (4.75% at April 30, 2003). The Company’s revolving credit facility contains various reporting
and performance covenants including (i) maintenance of certain financial ratios and tests, (ii) limitations on borrowings from other
sources, (iii) restrictions on certain operating activities, and (iv) restrictions on the payment of dividends or distributions. The amount
available to be drawn under the Company’s revolving credit facility is a function of eligible finance receivables. Based upon eligible
finance receivables at April 30, 2004, the Company could have drawn an additional $17.0 million under the facility.
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G - Income Taxes
The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was as follows:

2004
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Current
Deferred

Years Ended April 30,
2003

2002

$

8,707,314
454,192

$

6,662,344
1,281,756

$

(2,493,023)
5,282,435

$

9,161,506

$

7,944,100

$

2,789,412

The provision for income taxes is different from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income
before income taxes for the following reasons:

2004
Tax provision at statutory rate
$
State taxes, net of federal benefit
Non deductible portion of stock option compensation
Adjustment to estimated tax accrual
Other, net

8,680,333
707,104

$

9,161,506

Years Ended April 30,
2003
$

(225,931)

7,529,495
672,377

2002
$

770,828
348,050
1,234,226
360,215
76,093

$

2,789,412

(257,772)
$

7,944,100

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax
assets and liabilities as of April 30, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:
April 30,
2004
Deferred tax liabilities related to:
Finance receivables
Other
Total

$

Deferred tax assets related to:
Liability reserves
Other
Total

2,644,076
21,377
2,665,453

2003

$

2,798,360

688,390
360,167
1,048,557

Deferred tax liabilities, net

$
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1,616,896

2,798,360

1,356,710
278,946
1,635,656
$

1,162,704

H - Capital Stock
In March 2002 the Company acquired all of the remaining shares of Car-Mart common stock it did not previously own from the
Car-Mart minority shareholders by issuing 146,518 shares of the Company’s common stock (valued at approximately $1.4 million)
and paying approximately $1.6 million in cash. The Company is authorized to issue up to one million shares of $.01 par value
preferred stock in one or more series having such respective terms, rights and preferences as are designated by the Board of Directors.
The Company has not issued any preferred stock.
A subsidiary of the Company has issued 500,000 shares of $1.00 par value preferred stock which carries a 6% cumulative dividend.
The Company’s subsidiary can redeem the preferred stock at any time at par value plus any unpaid dividends. After April 30, 2007, a
holder of 400,000 shares of the subsidiary preferred stock can require the Company’s subsidiary to redeem such stock for $400,000
plus any unpaid dividends. The subsidiary preferred stock has been included in accrued liabilities.

I – Weighted Average Shares Outstanding
Weighed average shares outstanding used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share was as follows for the
years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002:
Years Ended April 30,
2003

2004

2002

Average shares outstanding – basic
Dilutive options and warrants

7,545,964
417,462

7,015,992
812,752

6,795,461

Average shares outstanding – diluted

7,963,426

7,828,744

6,795,461

4,375

45,000

1,419,180

Antidilutive securities not included:
Options and warrants
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J - Stock Options and Warrants
Stock Options
Since inception, the shareholders of the Company have approved three stock option plans including the 1986 Incentive Stock
Option Plan ("1986 Plan"), the 1991 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan ("1991 Plan") and the 1997 Stock Option Plan (“1997 Plan”).
While previously granted options remain outstanding, no additional option grants may be made under the 1986 and 1991 Plans. The
1997 Plan sets aside 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for grants to employees, directors and certain advisors of the
Company at a price not less than the fair market value of the stock on the date of grant and for periods not to exceed ten years. At
April 30, 2004 and 2003 there were 77,745 and 84,145 shares of common stock available for grant, respectively, under the 1997 Plan.
Options granted under the Company’s stock option plans expire in the calendar years 2005 through 2013. The following is an
aggregate summary of the activity in the Company’s stock option plans from April 30, 2001 to April 30, 2004:
Number
of
Shares

Exercise
Price
per Share

Outstanding at April 30, 2001
Granted
Exercised
Canceled

1,460,000
89,180
(155,000)
(32,500)

Outstanding at April 30, 2002
Granted
Exercised
Canceled

1,361,680
57,500
(475,500)
(3,325)

Outstanding at April 30, 2003
Granted
Exercised
Canceled

940,355
7,500
(607,828)
(1,100)

Outstanding at April 30, 2004

338,927

$

.41 to $
3.75 to
.41 to
2.44 to

Proceeds
on
Exercise
7.38
9.88
7.38
7.38

$

.41 to 9.88
13.08 to 13.15
.41 to 9.88
9.88 to 13.08
2.44 to

13.15
17.75
2.44 to 13.15
9.88

$

3.87 to $ 17.75

$

Weighted Average
Exercise Price per
Share

5,705,390
804,473
(604,140)
(141,406)

$ 3.91
9.02
3.90
4.35

5,764,317
755,600
(1,497,119)
(40,850)

4.23
13.14
3.15
12.29

4,981,948
133,125
(2,583,517)
(10,869)

5.30
17.75
4.25
9.88

2,520,687

$ 7.44

As of April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 all stock options were exercisable with the exception of options to purchase 10,000, 20,000
and 0 shares, respectively, at $13.15 per share. The non-exercisable options become fully exercisable in 2005. A summary of stock
options outstanding as of April 30, 2004 is as follows:
Range of
Exercise
Prices
$3.88 to $ 5.50
9.88 to 17.75

Number
of Shares
211,932
126,995

Weighted Average
Remaining
Contractual Life
3.23 years
8.03

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$ 4.89
11.69

338,927

5.03 years

$ 7.44

Warrants
As of April 30, 2004 the Company had stock purchase warrants outstanding to purchase 42,000 shares at prices ranging from $3.75
to $27.35 per share. All of the warrants are presently exercisable and expire between 2006 and 2009. During the fiscal years ended
April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company issued warrants to purchase 12,500, 5,000 and 57,500 shares of its common stock, which
had weighted-average grant-date fair values of $6.08, $3.00 and $1.22 per share, respectively.
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K - Commitments and Contingencies
Facility Leases
The Company leases certain dealership and office facilities under various operating leases. Dealership leases are generally for
periods from three to five years and contain multiple renewal options. As of April 30, 2004 the aggregate rentals due under such noncancelable operating leases with lease terms in excess of one year were as follows:
Years Ending
April 30,

Amount

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
Thereafter

$

1,406,698
449,773
318,640
89,235
45,600
-

$

2,309,946

For the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 rent expense for all operating leases amounted to approximately $1,905,000,
$1,765,000 and $1,581,000, respectively.
Litigation
In February 2001 and May 2002, the Company was added as a defendant in two similar actions which were originally filed in
December 1998 against approximately twenty defendants (the “Defendants”) by Astoria Entertainment, Inc. (“Astoria”). One action
was filed in the Civil District Court for the Parish of Orleans, Louisiana (the “State Claims”) and the other was filed in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana (the “Federal Claims”). In these actions, Astoria alleges the Defendants
conspired to eliminate Astoria from receiving one of the fifteen riverboat gaming licenses that were awarded by the State of Louisiana
in 1993 and 1994, at a time when a former subsidiary of the Company was involved in riverboat gaming in Louisiana. Astoria seeks
unspecified damages including lost profits. In August 2001, the Federal court dismissed all of the Federal Claims with prejudice. A
motion to dismiss the State Claims is pending before the state district court of appeals. The Company believes the State Claims are
without merit and intends to vigorously contest liability in this matter.
Further, in the ordinary course of business, the Company has become a defendant in various types of other legal proceedings.
Although the Company cannot determine at this time the amount of exposure from lawsuits, if any, management does not expect the
final outcome of any of these actions, individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

L – Fiscal 2002 Charges
The Company recorded the following charges during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002:
Fiscal
2002
Stock option based compensation
Restructuring charge
Write-down of investments and equipment

$

7,328,554
2,732,106
3,927,631

Stock Option Based Compensation
Prior to May 1, 2002, the Company’s 1997 Stock Option Plan contained a “cashless” exercise feature which allowed option holders
to use the “in-the-money” value of the option as payment for a portion or all of the exercise price of the option. Due to such cashless
feature, options granted under the plan were characterized as “variable” options under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Under variable option accounting, changes in the market value of the Company’s common stock generally
result in charges or credits to stock-based compensation with an offsetting entry to additional paid-in capital. Accordingly, for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 2002, the Company recorded a $7.3 million non-cash charge related to stock option based compensation.
In order to avoid future stock option based compensation charges or credits (which can result in volatile earnings fluctuations),
effective May 1, 2002 the Company rescinded the cashless exercise provision of its 1997 Plan.
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Restructuring Charge
As discussed in Note P, in October 2001, the Company made the decision to sell all of its operating subsidiaries except Car-Mart
and relocate its corporate headquarters to Bentonville, Arkansas where Car-Mart is based. As a result, the Company recorded
severance ($2.6 million) and office closing costs ($.1 million) totaling $2.7 million during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002.
Write-Down of Investments and Equipment
Prior to the Company’s decision in October 2001 to sell all of its operating subsidiaries except Car-Mart, the Company had a history
of making investments in a variety of different businesses, including investments in early-stage emerging technology/Internet
concerns. During the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002, financing for early-stage emerging technology/Internet investments, such as
the Company’s investment in Monarch Venture Partners’ Fund I, L.P. (“Monarch”) and Mariah Vision 3, Inc. (“Mariah”), became
increasingly difficult to obtain. The adverse conditions in the capital markets, combined with poor operating results and prospects of
Mariah and some of Monarch’s portfolio companies, caused the Company to consider whether its carrying values of Mariah and
Monarch were impaired. After review and analysis, the Company wrote-down the carrying value of Monarch and Mariah a total of
$3.3 million. In addition, during fiscal 2002 the Company wrote down the value of certain equipment prior to its sale by $.6 million.
The Company’s investment in Monarch and Mariah at April 30, 2004, which is carried at the lower of cost or market, was $293,811
and $0, respectively, and is included in “Prepaid and other assets” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

M - Related Party Transactions
During fiscal 2002, the Company paid an outside director $16,719 as a fee in connection with certain consulting services related to
its used car sales and finance business.
During fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company paid Dynamic Enterprises, Inc. (“Dynamic”) approximately $225,000 per year for
the lease of six dealership locations. During those periods an officer of Dynamic was also a director of the Company.

N - Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The table below summarizes information about the fair value of financial instruments included in the Company’s financial
statements at April 30, 2004 and 2003:
April 30, 2004
Carrying
Fair
Value
Value
Cash and cash equivalents
Finance receivables, net
Revolving credit facility

$

1,128,349
103,683,660
22,534,120

$

1,128,349
96,539,720
22,534,120

April 30, 2003
Carrying
Fair
Value
Value
$

783,786
91,358,935
25,968,220

$

783,786
83,815,523
25,968,220

Because no market exists for certain of the Company’s financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments and
estimates regarding yield expectations of investors, credit risk and other risk characteristics, including interest rate and prepayment
risk. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of judgment and therefore cannot be determined
with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates. The methodology and assumptions utilized to
estimate the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:
Financial Instrument
Cash and cash equivalents

Valuation Methodology
The carrying amount is considered to be a reasonable
estimate of fair value.

Finance receivables, net

The fair value was estimated based upon discussions with a
third party purchaser of finance receivables, and discussions
with other valuation personnel.

Revolving credit facility

The fair value approximates carrying value due to the
variable interest rates charged on the borrowings.
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O - Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Supplemental cash flow disclosures for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:
Years Ended April 30,
2003

2004
Interest paid
Income taxes paid (refunded), net
Note issued in the purchase of property and equipment
Stock issued to acquire Car-Mart minority interest

$

1,101,715
5,986,433

$

1,715,524
(1,400,091)

2002
$

2,773,843
5,396,204
900,000
1,447,589

P - Discontinued Operations
In October 2001 the Company made the decision to sell all of its operating subsidiaries except Car-Mart, and relocate its corporate
headquarters to Bentonville, Arkansas where Car-Mart is based. This decision was based on management’s desire to separate the
highly profitable and modestly leveraged operations of Car-Mart from the operating losses or lower level of profitability and highly
leveraged operations of the Company’s other operating subsidiaries. In addition, it is management’s belief that the Company’s
ownership of businesses in a variety of different industries may have created confusion within the investment community, possibly
making it difficult for investors to analyze and properly value the Company’s common stock. In May 2002 the Company sold its
remaining 50% interest in Precision IBC, Inc. (“Precision”) for $3.8 million in cash. In July 2002 the Company sold its 80% interest
in Concorde Acceptance Corporation (“Concorde”) for $3.0 million in cash. As a result of these two sales, the Company no longer
operates any business other than Car-Mart.
As a result of the Company’s decision, operating results from its non Car-Mart operating subsidiaries have been reclassified to
discontinued operations for all periods presented. Discontinued operations include the operations of Concorde through June 2002,
Precision through April 2002 and Smart Choice Automotive Group, Inc. (“Smart Choice”) through October 2001. Discontinued
operations for the year ended April 30, 2004 reflect a negotiated settlement of amounts due from a former subsidiary of the Company
that had been previously written-off. A summary of the Company’s discontinued operations for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003
and 2002 is as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended April 30,
2003

2004
Revenues
Operating expenses
Write-down of Smart Choice assets, net

$

$

3,058
2,306

$

(250)

Income (loss) before taxes and minority interests
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Minority interests (benefit)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations

-

2002

$
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104,069
107,474
19,945

250

752

(23,350)

85

283
94

(5,742)
(4,438)

165

$

375

$

(13,170)

Q - Quarterly Results of Operations (unaudited)
A summary of the Company’s quarterly results of operations for the years ended April 30, 2004 and 2003 is as follows (in
thousands, except per share information):

First
Quarter
Revenues
Income from continuing operations
Net income
Continuing earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted

$

43,310
4,379
4,544

Second
Quarter
$

.60
.55

$

36,097
3,437
3,687

$

.51
.48

First
Quarter
Revenues
Income from continuing operations
Net income
Continuing earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted

43,315
3,815
3,815

Year Ended April 30, 2004
Third
Quarter

Second
Quarter
$

38,278
3,100
3,356

.49
.43

.44
.40
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41,853
2,810
2,810

Fourth
Quarter
$

.37
.35

38,300
3,284
3,284
.47
.42

$

.60
.58

Year Ended April 30, 2003
Third
Quarter
$

47,706
4,635
4,635

Total

2.07
1.96

Fourth
Quarter
$

42,210
3,748
3,748
.53
.48

176,184
15,639
15,804

Total
$

154,885
13,569
14,075
1.93
1.73

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, the Company has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by this annual report on Form 10-K, and, based on their evaluation, the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures are effective. There were no
significant changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004
that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

PART III
Except as to information with respect to executive officers which is contained in a separate heading under Item 1 to this Form 10-K,
the information required by Items 10-14 of Form 10-K is, pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, incorporated by
reference from the Company's definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A for the Company's Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held in 2004 (the “Proxy Statement”). The Company will, within 120 days of the end of its fiscal year, file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission a definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A.

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
The information required by this item is set forth in the Proxy Statement under the headings "Proposals to be Voted on - Election of
Directors," "Ownership of Common Stock - Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" and “Corporate Governance
and Board Matters - Code of Ethics” which information is incorporated herein by reference. Information regarding the executive
officers of the Company is set forth under the heading "Executive Officers" in Item 1 of this report.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item is set forth in the Proxy Statement under the heading "Executive Compensation," which
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by this item is set forth in the Proxy Statement under the headings "Ownership of Common Stock" and
“Equity Compensation Plan Information,” which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The information required by this item is set forth in the Proxy Statement under the heading "Related Party Transactions," which
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
The information required by this item is set forth in the Proxy Statement under the heading "Principal Accountant Fees and
Services," which information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(a)(1)

Financial Statements and Accountant's Report
The following financial statements and accountant’s report are included in Item 8 of this report:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 30, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)(2)

Financial Statement Schedules
The financial statement schedules are omitted since the required information is not present, or is not present in amounts
sufficient to require submission of the schedules, or because the information required is included in the consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto.

(a)(3)

Exhibits
Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

3.1

Articles of Incorporation of the Company (formerly SKAI, Inc.). (3)

3.1.1

Articles of Merger of the Company and SKAI, Inc. filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Alabama on
September 29, 1989. (3)

3.1.2

Articles of Merger of the Company and SKAI, Inc. filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Texas on
October 10, 1989. (3)

3.1.3

Articles of Amendment filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Texas on October 7, 1993. (8)

3.1.4

Articles of Amendment filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Texas on October 5, 1994. (8)

3.1.5

Articles of Amendment filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Texas on October 2, 1997. (11)

3.1.6

Articles of Amendment filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Texas on March 20, 2002. (13)

3.2

By-Laws dated August 24, 1989. (4)

4.1

Specimen stock certificate. (9)

4.2

Agented Revolving Credit Agreement dated December 18, 2001 by and between America’s Car-Mart, Inc.
and Colonial Auto Finance, Inc. as borrowers, and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A., Bank of Arkansas, N.A.,
Superior Federal Bank, Great Southern Bank, Community Bank and Arkansas State Bank as lenders. (12)

4.2.1

Amendment dated November 30, 2003 to Agented Revolving Credit Agreement dated December 18, 2001 by
and between the Company as borrower, and Bank of Oklahoma and certain other banks as lenders. (15)

10.1

1986 Incentive Stock Option Plan. (2)

10.1.1

Amendment to 1986 Incentive Stock Option Plan adopted September 27, 1990. (5)

10.2

1991 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan. (6)

10.3

1997 Stock Option Plan. (10)

10.4

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and certain officers and directors of the Company.
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(7)
10.5

Employment agreement dated May 1, 2003 by and between the Company and William H. Henderson. (14)

10.6

Employment agreement dated May 1, 2003 by and between the Company and Eddie Lee Hight. (14)

14.1

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. (1)

21.1

Subsidiaries of America’s Car-Mart, Inc. (1)

23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. (1)

24.1

Power of Attorney of William H. Henderson. (1)

24.2

Power of Attorney of Tilman J. Falgout, III. (1)

24.3

Power of Attorney of J. David Simmons. (1)

24.4

Power of Attorney of Robert J. Kehl. (1)

24.5

Power of Attorney of Carl E. Baggett. (1)

31.1

Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (1)

31.2

Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (1)

32.1

Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (1)

(1)

Filed herewith.

(2)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Registration Statement on Form 10, as amended, (No. 014939) and incorporated herein by reference.

(3)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October
31, 1989 and incorporated herein by reference.

(4)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 30,
1990 and incorporated herein by reference.

(5)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 30,
1991 and incorporated herein by reference.

(6)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 30,
1992 and incorporated herein by reference.

(7)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31,
1993 and incorporated herein by reference.

(8)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, initially
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 31, 1994 (No. 33-79484) and incorporated herein
by reference.

(9)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 30,
1994 and incorporated herein by reference.

(10)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, as amended, initially
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 20, 1997 (No. 333-38475) and incorporated
herein by reference.

(11)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 30,
1998 and incorporated herein by reference.

(12)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January
31, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference.

(13)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 30,
2002 and incorporated herein by reference.

(14)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31,
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2003 and incorporated herein by reference.
(15)
(b)

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October
31, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference.

Reports on Form 8-K
During the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2004 the Company furnished the following reports on Form 8-K:
(1) - Form 8-K, dated February 13, 2004, reporting under Item 12 the issuance by the Company of a press release
announcing an adjustment to the Company’s earnings guidance for the fiscal quarter ended January 31, 2004.
(2) - Form 8-K, dated March 5, 2004, reporting under Item 12 the issuance by the Company of a press release announcing
earnings for the fiscal quarter ended January 31, 2004.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
AMERICA’S CAR-MART, INC.
Dated:

July 7, 2004

By: /s/ Tilman J. Falgout, III
Tilman J. Falgout, III
Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Dated:

July 7, 2004

By: /s/ Mark D. Slusser
Mark D. Slusser
Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and accounting officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

*
Tilman J. Falgout, III

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

July 7, 2004

*
William H. Henderson

Vice Chairman of the Board,
President and Director

July 7, 2004

*
J. David Simmons

Director

July 7, 2004

*
Robert J. Kehl

Director

July 7, 2004

*
Carl E. Baggett

Director

July 7, 2004

* By/s/ Mark D. Slusser
Mark D. Slusser
As Attorney-in-Fact
Pursuant to Powers of
Attorney filed herewith
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C O R P O R AT E I N F O R M AT I O N

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

T.J. (“Skip”) Falgout, III
Chairman and CEO

MAIN OFFICE

William H. (“Hank”) Henderson
President
Carl E. Baggett
Chairman of the Board, Arvest Bank
Robert J. Kehl
Investments
John David Simmons
President, Simmons & Associates, LLC
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
T.J. (“Skip”) Falgout, III
Chairman and CEO
William H. (“Hank”) Henderson
President
Mark D. Slusser
Chief Financial Officer
Eddie L. Hight
Chief Operating Officer
INVESTOR RELATIONS
EPOCH Financial Group, Inc.
210 Interstate North Parkway, Suite 700
Atlanta, Georgia 30339
(888) 917-5109
(770) 425-7740 fax

1501 SE Walton Blvd., Suite 213
Bentonville, Arkansas 72712
(479) 464-9944
(479) 273-7556 fax
DALLAS OFFICE
251 O’Connor Ridge Blvd., Suite 100
Irving, Texas 75038
(972) 717-3423
(972) 717-0973 fax
ANNUAL MEETING
The annual meeting of stockholders of America’s Car-Mart,
Inc. will be held at the Clarion Hotel, 211 Southeast Walton
Blvd., Bentonville, Arkansas at 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday,
September 29, 2004.
TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
Securities Transfer Corporation
Dallas, Texas
(469) 633-0101
INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Grant Thornton, LLP
Dallas, Texas
GENERAL COUNSEL
Smith, Gambrell & Russell, LLP
Atlanta, Georgia

Contacts:

Todd Atenhan, Tatenhan@epochir.com
Valerie Kimball, Vkimball@epochir.com

For more information, please visit our web site at:

www.car-mart.com

